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BY: ROBERT W. BALLENGER, ESQ.
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Executive Director

ROSLYN BELL, ESQ.

Hearing Exami ner
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Financi al Analyst/Internal Auditor

SANDRA FONTANEZ (Via Teams)
Admi ni strative Assi stant

PRESENT ON BEHALF OF PGW

W LLI AM J. GALLAGHER

Vice President, Budget and Strategic
Devel opment

DANI EL CASSI DY, P. E.

Vice President, Technical Operations

ROBERT HOAGLAND, ESQ.
Seni or Attorney
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PRESENT ON BEHALF OF PGW (Conti nued)

ERI K W CKLEY- OLSEN, P.E. (Via Teans)
Princi pal Engi neer

PRESENT ON BEHALF OF CITY COUNCI L:

FRANK | ANNUZZI
Legi sl ative Director

PRESENT ON BEHALF OF THE CI TY:
KATHERI NE LEONETTI
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PRESENT ON BEHALF OF THE PUBLI C:
EM LY DAVI S
SARAH BAI ER
ERI C STOWERS
KAREN HARVEY
PAUL DEVI NE BOTTONE

M TCH CHANI N

PRESENT ON BEHALF OF THE PUBLIC: (Via Teanms - and
as identified on Teans Meeting Participant Log)

PETER FURCHT
L1 NNEA BOND
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CHAl RWOMAN BRADY: The second itemis
PGW s Proposed Fiscal Year 2027 Capital
Budget and Rel ated Matters.

The Recomended Deci sion, which was
i ssued by Executive Director Genela
McCl endon and Comm ssion Staff on
March 17th, will be marked as Gas
Comm ssi on Exhi bit #2.

(VWher eupon Phi | adel phia Gas
Comm ssion Exhibit #2 was marked for
identification.)

CHAI RWOMAN BRADY: On March 23rd, PGW
and the Public Advocate filed exceptions
and coments to the Recommended Deci si on,
which will be marked respectively as Gas
Wor ks Exhi bit #1 and Public Advocate
Exhi bit #1.

(VWher eupon Phi |l adel phia Gas Wor ks
Exhi bit #1 and Public Advocate Exhibit #1

were marked for identification.)
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CHAI RWOMAN BRADY: We would like to
ask Ms. McCl endon to provide a brief
overvi ew of PGW s Proposed Fiscal Year
2027 Capital Budget.

EXEC. DI R. McCLENDON: On
January 2nd, 2026, PGWfiled a Proposed
Fi scal Year 2027 Capital Budget of
$390, 561, 000.

After Comm ssion Staff's customary
due diligence, including the conduct of
di scovery and a public hearing which was
held on February 9, 2026, Staff issued a
Recommended Deci sion on March 17, 2026,
wherein Staff recomended that PGW s
proposed FY 2027 Capital Budget be
rej ected, and instead an FY 2027 Capital
Budget in the amount of $208, 000, 000 be
approved.

Thi s anmount represents a 47.6%
reduction in PGWs Proposed FY 2027
Capi tal Budget.

Thank you.

CHAI RWOMAN BRADY: Thank you.

We would like to provide the
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participants with the opportunity to nmake
a brief presentation before we call the
guestion to vote.

First, we will hear from PGW

M . Dasent.

MR. DASENT: Good nor ni ng,
Conmm ssi oners.

| just wanted to say, we have a few
chal l enges facing us with respect to the
LNG Project, which we will focus on today,
and in our exceptions that was the primary
I Ssue.

Those chal l enges relate to getting
the LNG liquefier in place by 2030 in a
timely way.

The urgency of that is without it, we
not only risk exposing custoners during
the coldest winters to possible harm but
we al so have a situation where we use the
LNG liquefier to avert problens with
system failure, other things that come up,
not just the weather, that allow us to
operate because we have the flexibility of

peak shaving, or addressing the need with

Veritext Lega Solutions
215-241-1000 ~ 610-434-8588 ~ 302-571-0510 ~ 202-803-8830




© 00 N o o0 b~ W N

N N N NN P P PR R R R R R,
A WO N P O O 0O N O O B WO N +—» O

Page 8

the LNG |iquefier.

But let me first focus on those areas
t hat we have an agreenent with the
Recommended Deci si on.

On prudence, we fully agree that we
made a record as to the prudence of the
City replacing the LNG |iquefier.

The existing liquefier is at the end
of its useful life. W need to replace it
in atinly way, and we think the record
has been made that it needs to be
repl aced.

Now, the only question is: Having
this agreenent with the Hearing Oficers
on this point, what do we do about it?

The prudence decision requires us to
act because we need to have a plant in
pl ace in some reasonable tineline, and
we're aimng for Fiscal Year 2030.

Now, we have about four concerns with
respect to the Recomended Decision after
t hese areas of agreenent.

For exanple, we need to get past the

sizing of the plant. We're talking
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now and the Recommended Deci sion flagged
some of the issues that not only the
Hearing Officers but the Public Advocate
rai sed as to what's the appropriate size
for the plant.

PGW based upon design w nter
criteria, has decided that 3.2 Bcf is the

ri ght production for the LNG pl ant.

At present our existing plant only

produces 2.2 Bcf.

So this is the problem

So that's a shortfall

of approximately 1

Bcf every year.

We avert that problem or address it,
you know, by sizing the new plant in a way
that we don't have to truck in the
di fference between 2.2 and 3.3 based upon

design winter criteria. This is the right

size for the plant. |t doesn't produce
excess capacity. It produces enough
capacity.

| f you truck in the LNG you're
basically dealing with an issue on an ad
hoc basis. And we're suggesting that you

deal with it as a plant, and not trucking
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also the LNG t hrough the comunity around
t he LNG pl ant.

In addition to that, you know, we
suggest that we need to proceed to
advanced engi neering studies. Those
studies basically will tell us all the
detail that the Public Advocate and the
Hearing Officers would like to see which
can be provided with advanced engi neering
st udi es.

| apol ogi ze for my voice.

They're called studies. They're
engi neering studies, front-end engi neering
studies. It gives you the precise design
of the plant, the sizing, it gives you
pi ping, electrical configuration, and it
will give you a better idea as to project
costs because they vet the project much
more carefully.

We're at the primary stages of the
project at this point. Now, the Hearing
Exam ners' error, we believe, is in not
approving the LNG project at |east on a

condi ti onal basis.
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On a conditional basis one of the
condi tions would be: Provide the results
of the study that gives you the design
i nformation, gives you better cost
information. It gives you all the
criteria you're |looking for and it gives
you the agility, once you have it, to make
a decision relatively pronptly to rel ease
the funding that's available for the
pl ant .

Proj ect approval, at |east on a
condi tional basis, is inportant for that
reason.

A second issue: The project should
not be del ayed because of the P3
negoti ations. Those negotiations are a
fully independent project. W are |ooking
for alternatives and trying to be creative
about doing it.

As a consequence, we have identified
in a transparent way, we are trying to do
everything we can to spare custoners the
burden of this, if we can, or |essen the

burden of it. W can do that by pursuing
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ot her alternatives as well.

But the 2030 criteria or deadline for
t he conpl etion of the plant doesn't go
away.

So we believe the conditional funding
al so gives you flexibility there. |If we
know what happens with the P3
negoti ations, giving that information to
you, you can make in a very pronpt manner
a deci sion about what to do next.

So basically, based upon design,
based upon P3, you have this ability to
sort of pivot with the information you
need; and | think it gives you, as a
regul ator, enough data to make an infornmed
deci si on.

And you can go about it different
ways, and the Hearing O ficers have
suggested that. W think it's nore agile
and nore pronpt to address it in a
condi ti onal spendi ng authorization.

So just to put a line under it,

“condi tional approval,” we think is the

best way forward. Obviously, full
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approval, if we had our druthers, that's
what we woul d want .

But conditional approval, | think,
gives you the ability to have the
informati on you need to nmake an i nfornmed
deci sion, to go forward with P3 and
advanced engi neering outcones, so we can
sort of make the right decision and
hopefully be in a situation where we can,
simlar to last winter, be able to serve
our customers in a cold snap and have t hat
peak shaving ability and safe custoners.

And we don't enphasi ze enough that
over the years, 30-sone years or nore,
where we saved $3 billion easily with
respect to the operation of an LNG
facility.

Ot her utilities are sort of envious
of us because we have this capacity. W
don't have to go and access the markets
and buy in the worst tinmes or at the worst
prices.

We have the ability to produce our

own peak shavi ng; keep custonmers warmin
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the winter; and, in addition to that, have
the ability to avert system failures or
address systemfailures as to avert the
worst calam ties that m ght happen.

We al so made comments about public
outreach in the small and | ocal businesses
i n our exceptions, but | think they speak
for thensel ves.

We just wanted to indicate to you
that it's inportant to make a tinmely
deci si on here.

And i f prudence is sonmething we all
agree on, that decision, in terns of
prudent and reliable service, should trunp
everything else, or at |east be
count er bal anced with everything else, so
you woul d have all the information you
need to make a correct decision and a
timely decision in a way so that custoners
can either save noney or, even better,
avert interruption of service, avert all
t he problens that cone with that.

We take for granted that this plan is
in place. W take for granted for 30
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years that we've had a systemt hat
operates economcally on a | east-cost
basis. And now we're sort of acting as
t hough there's sonmething to be gai ned by
del aying a decision to build a plant that
makes sense from operati onal purposes.

And M. Cassidy, the Operating
Engi neer, just knows these things inside
and out. He, | think, made as credible a
record as he can with respect to the
pl ant .

|f you | ook at the study we provided
as well, it |leaves the foundation, |
t hi nk, that nakes the prim facie case
t hat we shoul d proceed. The Hearing
Officers agreed with that. W just need
to take the next step and get funding in
pl ace.

That's what we have.

Thank you.

CHAI RWOMAN BRADY: Thank you.

M. Ballenger, are there any
statenments on behalf of the Advocate?

MR. BALLENGER: Thank you.
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Good norni ng, Madam Chair and

Comm ssioners. M nane is Robert

Bal | enger. |'m serving as Public Advocate

in this Capital Budget proceeding.

As you know fromthe record up to
this point, we've reached agreenment with
PGW on a nunber of adjustnents to the
budget. Those are no | onger in dispute.

What remains is one very, very | arge
adj ustnment: PGW s proposed $182 mllion
Ri chnrond LNG Repl acement Proj ect.

The Hearing Exam ners reconmmend you

deny PGW spendi ng authority based on three

primary factors.

First, they agree with the Public
Advocate that PGW s proposal, which is
capabl e of producing 1.1 Bcf nmore LNG
annual ly than its existing plant, is
oversi zed and coul d overburden PGW
customers with unnecessary debt service
expense.

And what you just heard from
M. Dasent fails to acknow edge one

i nportant part of the record before you,
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which is that PGW has historically engaged
in off-system sale of LNG because it has
had excess capacity.

So PGW contends that what it has had
in service for over 20 years now has been
adequate to neet PGW s needs for expanding
t he pl ant.

Second, the Hearing Exam ners
recogni ze that PGW s plant design is
i nconpl ete and detail ed project design has
not comenced. And the issue there isn't
getting the information now, it's getting
the information later, when PGWhas to
come back and ask for nore funding from
you and nore delays and nore tinme spent
because it hasn't done its homework.

Finally, your Hearing Exam ners
recogni ze that PGWs parallel efforts to
partner with the private entity to finance
construction of this plant mlitates
heavi |l y agai nst authorizing expenditure at
this tine.

Provi di ng spendi ng approval, if

negoti ations are successful, would be
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totally unnecessary and create a massive
infusion into the budget that PGW doesn't
even need.

So the Public Advocate concurs with
t he Hearing Exam ners' recomendati on. We
di d not accept or urge you to take action
di fferent than what the Hearing Exam ners
have recommended, but we do have a few
concerns that | think were not either
adequately addressed in the Recommended
Decision or with which we think the record
requi res sonme suppl ementation.

As a policy matter, Phil adel phia has
adopted the goal of obtaining carbon
neutrality by 2050. How PGW budgets align
with this goal is a consideration that |
t hi nk needs significant and ongoi ng
attention.

For the limted purpose of this
proceedi ng, however, | note that PGW has
not shown that its new plant is consistent
with those sustainability objectives, and
t he Recommend Deci sion before you doesn't

make a finding on that issue. | want that

Veritext Lega Solutions

215-241-1000 ~ 610-434-8588 ~ 302-571-0510 ~ 202-803-8830




© 00 N o o0 b~ W N

N N N NN P P PR R R R R R,
A WO N P O O 0O N O O B WO N +—» O

Page 19

to be clear today.

Regarding the useful life of PGW s
plant, as we've put and explained on the
record, PGWs statenents on its useful
|'i fe have changed several tines. It's
been a noving target in proceedings before
you.

And peak shaving the plants, those
plants that produce LNG to neet w nter
demand when gas prices are higher due to
mar ket pressure, can and do remain in
service for 50 years or nore.

PGW s pl ant has been in service for
21 years at this point and it has received
manuf act urer gui dance and operati onal
gui delines to change how it uses the plant
in order to extend its useful life.

So we maintain our skepticism
regardi ng those clains, and at |east with
regard to the Recommended Deci sion's
conclusion that that has been resolved, we
don't believe that's correct.

We believe we will continue to

consi der whether or not the plant is due
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for replacenment when PGW cones back in a
future proceeding.

PGW s clainms regarding the savings to
its customers also warrant some response
today. Peak shaving facilities have
hi storically been cost beneficial.

PGWs facility has been cost
beneficial to custonmers in terns of gas
costs, but PGWdid not save $90 million
this winter due to its LNG facility.

PGWs claimis that in the absence of
LNG, it would have had to pay $90 nmillion
to supplenent its existing supplies to
meet customer demand during the
January/ February cold snap. That's not
true because PGW had al ready purchased the
gas.

So whatever the cost was to purchase
that gas is not factored in. PGW had
already liquefied the gas. The
oper ati onal expense of |iquefying the gas
has not factored in.

So sonme of the nunbers that have been

put in front of you in this proceedi ng and
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some of the estimates that PGW has used to
make its case are really overstated, and
in some way they're scare tactics. |
recomnmend that you disregard those nunbers
for purposes of discussion today.

And, finally, | just wanted to add,
not substantively as to the proposal, but
that | have heard fromnultiple menbers of
the public in advance of this neeting with
gquestions about the Conm ssion's online
forum for public input.

| was kind of at a loss to explain
what was happening there and why the rul es
for virtual participation changed today.

| request that any input that has
been provi ded electronically using that
form be appended to the transcript so that
it is on the same record as those people
who have come to submt comments today.

And | would also wel come the
opportunity to work with the Staff and
Comm ssioners going forward on ideas about
changi ng public input because | think that

it's very inportant that nenbers of the
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public have as many opportunities as we
can make available to themto participate.
And | know that online participation can
be a way to do that as can a witten form
So I would like to be involved in
di scussions on that, if there are ideas to
change things going forward.

Wth that, | leave it to you.

Thank you.

CHAI RMOMAN BRADY: Thank you,
M . Ball enger.

Next, we will take brief coments
from menbers of the public.

Comments will be limted to three
m nut es and should only address PGW s
Proposed Fiscal Year 2027 Capital Budget.

EXEC. DIR. McCLENDON: First, we have
Em |y Davis.

When you approach the m crophone,
pl ease i ntroduce yoursel f; what
organi zation, if any, that you are here
representing.

After you have done that, | wll

start your tine.
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MS. DAVIS: W nane is Em |y Davis,
and |'mjust representing nmyself today.

EXEC. DI R. McCLENDON: Okay.

MS. DAVIS: | live in Center City.
|'ve lived in Philadel phia for 40 years.

| " m concerned about --

EXEC. DI R. McCLENDON: Ms. Davis --
and as a rem nder to everyone -- again,
the request is that you just introduce
yourself. Once you're done introducing
yourself, | will start your time to begin.

So you may begi n speaki ng now.

MS. DAVIS: |'m concerned about the
future of PGW and our planet.

| ask that the Comm ssioners follow
t he recommendati on of the Hearing Exam ner
and renove the 182 mllion LNG repl acenment
l[ine fromthe budget.

Since our City has resolved to be
carbon neutral by 2050, only 24 years from
now, this will become a stranded asset.

As the City noves toward carbon
neutrality, PGW must have a plan for its

enpl oyees who will still need jobs, just
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as Phil adel phia will still need heating
and cool i ng.

Being able to sell geothermal heating
and cooling is an option listed in the
di versification study.

It will provide PGWw th year-round
inconme and its enployees with many j obs
for which they already have skills.

As a menber of Geodel phia, |'m
famliar with other cities and utility
conmpani es that have been inplenmenting
geot hermal networks, and the first
geot hermal energy network was i npl enent ed
in France in 1332, so it's not a new idea.

As for geothermal heating and
cooling, the first comercial use was in
1948 in Portland, also not particularly
new.

| n Fram ngham Massachusetts, Ever
Source Energy began planning for its
geot hermal pilot in 2020.

Now, in 2026, pilot participants,
whi ch include over 100 residenti al

apartments and hones, are enjoying the
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second season of geothermal heating and
cool i ng.

Here in Phil adel phia, four years
after funding for a study was put into
PGW s budget, PGWis finally nearing
conpl etion of their study; and their study
i nvestigated the small est possi bl e network
of two buildings, neither of which are
residential .

It's tinme to give Phil adel phi ans an
opportunity to experience thermal energy
net wor ks provided by the utility that they
own.

Again, | ask that you renove the
$182 mllion LNG line fromthe budget and
to make sure that PGW s budget aligns wth
the City's climte goals.

Thank you.

( Appl ause.)

EXEC. DI R. McCLENDON: Next i s
Sar ah Bai er.

And, again, as a rem nder, introduce
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yoursel f; any organi zation, if any, that

you're affiliated with; and then once
you're done with that, I will start your
tinme.

MS. BAIER: Hi. Thank you. M nane
is Sarah Baier and | am here as a resident
of Port Ri chnond.

EXEC. DIR. McCLENDON: Okay. Thank
you.

You may begi n now.

MS. BAIER: Good norning. As | said,
my name is Sarah Baier. Thank you for
letting me be here today to |listen and
speak.

As a resident of Port Richnmond, at
the last public neeting | offered public
comment on my concerns around
envi ronment al exposures and a conti nued
investnment in fossil fuels that directly
conflicts with the Phil adel phia 2050
carbon neutral conm tment.

G ven the decline in demand for LNG
for residential use, moving forward with

an i nvestnent of this scale at the
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Ri chmond facility without fully

consi dering viable alternatives raises

concerns about potential cost burdens for

rate payers.

Today, | would like to al so address

the |l ack of transparency --

EXEC. DIR. McCLENDON: | am so sorry
to everyone.

There is a fire drill for the
building. 1It's disturbing. | don't want

to take fromyour time while |I'm speaking.

lt's just a fire drill. It was announced.

We apol ogi ze, but pl ease proceed.
You may resune.

MS. BAIER: Okay.

Do you want me to keep tal king over

t his?

EXEC. DIR. McCLENDON: [If you coul d.

It's going to be a few m nutes.

MS. BAIER: Okay. All right.

So | would like to address the | ack

of transparency and opportunity for public

engagenment .

EXEC. DI R. M CLENDON: To the nmenbers
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of the public, just so that you know,

because of the fire drill that's going on,

we are going to pause this until it's

over. So we w |l pause recording. You

will still remain in the meeting, though.

And, Ms. Baier, | did stop your tine,

SO. ..

(Wher eupon, there was a pause in the

proceedi ng.)

EXEC. DIR. McCLENDON: Okay. Again,

we apol ogize for that. Conpletely out

our control. So apol ogi es.

We are going to resune recording and

go ahead and get back started.

Ms. Baier, you have two m nutes |eft

on the clock. [I'mgoing to go ahead and
start that now.

MS. BAI ER: Ckay.

So | don't need to backtrack at all?

EXEC. DIR. McCLENDON:  No.

MS. BAI ER: So, as | mentioned before

we had the fire drill, the last tinme |
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here, | spoke about environnmental concerns
and the industrial inpact of the
nei ghbor hood of Port Ri chnond.

Today, |' m speaking about the | ack of
transparency and opportunity for public
engagenment from PGW and t he Phil adel phi a
Gas Comm ssi on.

From ny perspective, as a
communi cati ons professional, | don't
believe that due diligence has been done
to engage the public, especially the
residents of Port Richnond for whomthis
wll, you know, i npact.

| will rem nd you that Port Ri chnond
is a proud working-class neighborhood
that's long carried nore than its fair
share of industrial burden and investing
further in LNG infrastructure here raises
serious concerns about our safety, air
quality, emergency preparedness, and
envi ronmental justice.

Approving this budget line is an
i nmportant step in this process,

essentially a foot in the door for PGW
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Before noving forward, it is --

(Wher eupon, there was overtal king
during | oudspeaker announcenent ending
fire drill.)

MS. BAIER: -- clearly denonstrates
t he need for LNG -- (overtal king with
| oudspeaker) -- we share the Public
Advocate's concern that neither has been
sufficiently addressed to date.

| would also Iike to say that the
change to virtual participation is
concerning. | can speak that, you know, |
have a fairly flexible boss and job. Not
everyone in nmy neighborhood has the
privilege that | do --

EXEC. DIR. McCLENDON: 30 seconds.

MS. BAIER: -- to take a day off. So
for many people on a Tuesday norning, the
only way that we can participate is
t hrough this virtual option.

| really do feel that the people who

are online today should be allowed to
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share comments in addition to preparing
statements ahead of tine.

In the future, if you would like to
solicit comments online |ike that, maybe
l'i ke think about digital barriers. Having
sonmeone fill out a PDF, sign it, and email
it is a barrier.

EXEC. DIR. McCLENDON: Thank you.

MS. BAIER: Thank you.

( Appl ause.)

CHAI RWMOMAN BRADY: Next speaker.

EXEC. DIR. McCLENDON: Next, we have
Eric Stowers.

Agai n, introduce yourself; any
organi zation, if any. Once you've done
that, I will let you know when you can
begi n.

MR. STONERS: My nane is Eric
Stowers. I'mnot with an official
organi zation. |'ma resident of Port
Ri chnond.

EXEC. DIR. McCLENDON: Okay.
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You may begin now.

MR. STOWERS: Thank you, Gas
Conmmi ssi on.

l'"'mat a loss for -- for what's out
t here because there's, |like, so many
underlying details that | want to comment
on, and really, like, the only comments |
woul d | ove to be able to ask questions
directly and not just have to state stuff
for your consideration, but actually get
answers on that kind of stuff.

' mgoing to talk about a few main
poi nts today.

First, I"Il just comment on what |
heard just fromright now.

There's a |lot of talk about the
i nportance that we need to get this going
ri ght now, we need to act timely. There's
a |lot of risk-averse sentinment right here,
and that makes sense.

Li ke, if we're tal king about a pl ant
that is, like, we're considering, |ike,
the nature of how to service the

community, it makes sense. But this is a
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| ong-term decision. Like, it's going to
have maj or inpacts down the road.

So when we tal k about the tineliness,
| can't find -- can't -- | just keep on
t hi nki ng about the irony that we care so
much about the tinmeliness of this plant,
but we don't care about the tinmeliness of
how we' re addressing climte change.

If PGWreally cared about the
timeliness of stuff, wouldn't we really be
addressi ng our carbon neutral goals
al ready with what they've been doing, wth
what they've had years to do?

So when | hear about all this stuff,
it really just seens like a sales tactic
to hurry and rush the sale on this kind of
stuff.

Let's get additional approval, so
t hat way we can already just start noving.
It's harder to stop stuff when you've
already just kind of set everything in
motion right there.

So that really bothered nme about

t oday because there's a |lot of inportant
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conditions -- |ike, what are the
conditions going to be?

| mean, I'mgoing to call out a few
that |1've been really thinking about the
| ast couple of nmonths, and |'ve read the
Capi tal Budget three different tines
| ooking for these answers and tried to
engage with others, and it's still unclear
to nme.

The public-private partnership to ne
is a big -- is something big that shoul d
be addressed before there's -- |ike, would
we ever sign up for a nortgage w thout
knowi ng the rate? Would we ever sign on
with a real estate agent before know ng
what their comm ssion will be?

Li ke, I don't even know t he ful
details of what the private partner
would -- |ike, what would it | ook like,
but those shoul d be resol ved beforehand.

We shoul d know what that's going to
be. And if that's going to be sonething
t hat gets figured out |ater on, then,

great, let's do that and then get approval

Veritext Lega Solutions
215-241-1000 ~ 610-434-8588 ~ 302-571-0510 ~ 202-803-8830




© 00 N o o0 b~ W N

N N N NN P P PR R R R R R,
A WO N P O O 0O N O O B WO N +—» O

Page 35

for the budget once you already have al

those line items in there.

We tal ked about -- the |awyer today
tal ked about the -- like, the plant has
al ready been -- |ike, sone things have

been figured out and some things haven't
been.

But, |like, there's been no
facility-wide NOx |imt on this --

EXEC. DIR. McCLENDON: 30 seconds.

MR. STOWERS: There's been no
facility-wide NOx |imt on this plant
ever. |s that going to be addressed?

That coul d change how t he
infrastructure needs to be done. Port
Ri chnond is already an industrialized
area. This is stuff that needs to be
taken into consideration. There should be
proper ways to engage the community.

Pl ease read all the underlying
details that are going in here. There's
going to be a |l ot of excess LNG  \Who's
going to profit fromthat? Howis it

going to affect the community? Pl ease
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take that into consideration.
Thank you.

( Appl ause.)

EXEC. DIR. McCLENDON: Thank you.

Next, we have Karen Harvey.

MS. HARVEY: M nanme is Karen Harvey.
' m here as a resident of Phil adel phia.

EXEC. DI R. M CLENDON: Okay.

You may begi n now.

MS. HARVEY: [|'m a nenber of Here 4
Climate Justice and the Founding Director
of the Phil adel phia Rent Control
Coalition. But today |I'm here speaking as
an individual, a nother, a grandnother,
and a |lifelong PGW consuner.

' m here because | need to know what
the Comm ssion and the City of
Phi | adel phia plan to do to inprove the
quality of the air, which is becom ng
increasingly difficult for me to catch ny
breath in.

| ' ve heard nunmerous prom ses for a
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cl ean, green Phil adel phia by 2050. At 73
years of age, | figure the chances are
pretty good that you have little concern
about keeping that promse to ne
personal ly.

But what about ny grandchildren, the
famlies of the people in this room and
your own ki ds?

My sense is that sadly the nmenbers of
t he Comm ssion and the | egislature of this
City possess even | ess knowl edge about
geot hermal practices and policies than do
| and the general public, which is
frightening because you literally hold the
futures of our children in the pal ns of
your hands.

How and when do you intend to educate
yoursel ves toward cleaning the air | wl
need to breathe for however many years |
have left on this earth?

Agai n, what about the children we
ki ss good ni ght?

We, the public, ook to you for

answers and for protection and for a safe
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and healthy environnment in which to |ive.
The time is now. The people are here, and
we want to work with you to secure all of
our futures.

Thi nk of yourselves as instrunments of
life, if you will, and make the deci sion
to do what is right for those you have
been comm ssioned to serve and protect.

Thank you for allow ng nme the
opportunity to share ny thoughts and
concerns.

EXEC. DIR. McCLENDON: Thank you.

( Appl ause.)

EXEC. DI R. McCLENDON: Next, we have
Paul Devine -- | don't know if it's
Bott one or Bottone.

MR. DEVINE BOTTONE: |It's Paul Devine
Bottone and I'm a pediatrician just here
speaki ng on ny own behal f.

EXEC. DI R. McCLENDON: Ckay.

You may begin now.

MR. DEVI NE BOTTONE: Thanks,
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everyone, for being here.

As | said, I"'ma pediatrician. |'m
also a dad. 1'malso a PGW custoner. |
[ive in Philadel phia.

| just want to echo a | ot of points
the fol ks have made about concerns about
transparency; about the way that this is
bei ng rushed, pretty obviously, to make
sure that this can get locked in, in a
time in which we still feel that natural
gas is a good viable option.

| want to talk about the health
concerns that | have as a pediatrician.

So we know that Phil adel phia has nore
than its burden of pediatric asthm
specifically. Rates of pediatric asthm
are sonmewhere in the 20 to 25 percent
range. We're | ooking at a national
average of about 6% We're tal king about
more than three tinmes, al nost four tinmes
t he nati onal average for asthna.

We al so know that all the conpounds
t hat are associated with the production of

natural gas, with burning of natural gas
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that affects us in our comunities and in
our honmes, increase |levels of pediatric
ast hma.

My husband and | are both doctors.
We are rich. W are actively looking to
repl ace the gas range that's in our hone
because we have a 2-year-old and we're
pl anning to adopt another child very soon
and we have this option to, even without
t he subsidies that were avail abl e that
have been taken away by the roll back of
all of the climte progress we've been
maki ng at the federal |evel, replace our
system and we are going to do that
because we care so nuch about the health
of our child. W want to protect him as
much as we can. W recognize that not
everybody has the option to do that.

| n medi ci ne, we think about
envi ronment al determ nants of health, so
t hat means the way that our environment
affects our health every day. We know
that certain communities are much nore

affected than others by very poor
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determ nants of heal th.

One of the nost inportant is
proximty to heavy industry. They have a
termthey call "sacrifice zones." These
are the neighborhoods |ike Port Ri chmond
and |i ke Grays Ferry, where Phil adel phia
Energy Sol utions was.

These are nei ghbor hoods where tine
and time again we're told we need new
plants, let's put it right there. W're
tal ki ng about how trucks m ght have to
come through this neighborhood.

It sounds |like to me we need to think
about a different solution. W need to
t hi nk about better energy efficiency,
better geothermal, all these things that
are under PGW s unbrella but are not being
expl ored; as opposed to "Oh, well, you
have two options. W can either have
trucks or we can have a huge plant."”

Those do not seem | i ke good
solutions. Those do not seem|ike --

EXEC. DIR. McCLENDON: 30 seconds.

MR. DEVI NE BOTTONE: So | just want
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to say that we need to be thinking
gl obal ly where we know t hat natural gas
affects not just our lifetime, our adults'
respiratory issues, but our children with
ast hma, much higher rates of premature
birth, low birth rate with higher air
pol | uti on.

This is a lifetinme issue from before
birth until death, and we need to be
t hi nki ng about every opportunity to
transition away from natural gas and ot her
very polluting industries toward sonet hing
t hat woul d be much cl eaner and nuch nore
sust ai nabl e.

Thank you.

( Appl ause.)

EXEC. DIR. McCLENDON: Thank you.

And, finally, we have Mtch Chanin.

MR. CHANIN: M tch Chanin, resident
of Northeast Philly, PGWratepayer. |'m
not representing any organi zation today.

EXEC. DIR. McCLENDON: Okay.
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You may begin now.

MR. CHANI N: Great.

Thanks for the opportunity to speak.

| want to begin by commenting on the
change to the public comrent procedures.
|f there are people waiting online to
speak today, | hope that you will all ow
themto speak.

Many people like to tell their
comments based on what they've heard in
the moment, and |'ve heard no
justification for why people have to show
up in person in order to be able to do
t hat .

So |i ke many people have stated, |
support the Hearing Exam ners'
recommendati on and hope the Conmm ssion
will decline to approve the $182, 000, 000
for the LNG project.

There is an energency happening in
this building and in Philly and it is not
a drill. The energency is that we have an
asthma crisis. W have an energy

affordability crisis. W have a climte
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crisis.

We need | ong-termreal solutions for
t hose problens and we're not getting them
fromPGW from City Council, or fromthe
Gas Conmm ssi on.

Seven years ago, many of us were
fighting a proposal to build an LNG pl ant
in South Philadel phia. W cane here to
the Gas Commi ssion. We cane to City
Counci | .

At the tinme many people stated and
agreed that we have real problens to
solve: how do we make sure that people
can afford the heat that they need, that
the heat is reliable and safe, and that we
protect clean air and a |iveable climte
and union jobs at the same time, and that
we needed a real long-termplan for PGWin
order to acconplish that.

That was seven years ago. |
testified at a hearing at City Hall about
that in 2019. Since then, there's been no
pl an devel oped.

| nstead, PGWis putting forward and
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the Gas Conm ssion is approving |long-term
capital investnments in fossil fuel
infrastructure year after year with no
| ong-term forecast and no | ong-term pl an.

So why are we approving nassive
fossil fuel infrastructure projects
| asting 20, 30, 50 years or |longer with no
| ong-term plan when we know that to neet
the City's climtes goals we need to phase
out the use of fossil fuels, and when we
know fossil fuel consunption is declining
even now, w thout the policies that we
need in place.

| understand that people have a
concern about maki ng sure that people can
have their heat in the winter starting in
2030.

There have been years to develop a
| ong-term plan. There have been years to
figure out how to solve that issue with
wi nter, you know, how do we make sure that
in the winter --

EXEC. DIR. McCLENDON: 30 seconds.

MR. CHANIN: -- that we can provide
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reliable, safe heat in the wi nter during
peak times in an affordable way, and the
wor k has not been done to answer the
gquestion in the way that it needs to be
answer ed.

| hope the Comm ssion will not only
decline to approve the $180 mllion now,
but insist that PGW produce |ong-term
forecasts and business plans that reflect
t he econom c and technological realities
and the City's climte goals. Sonmeone
needs to hold PGW account abl e.

EXEC. DI R. McCLENDON: M . Chani n,
that's your tinme. Thank you.

(Appl ause.)

CHAI RWOMAN BRADY: Thank you, M tch.

W will now nmove to Executive
Director McCl endon for the email ed public
comrent s.

Ms. McCl endon, were all public
comments that were received before

a.m this nmorning furnished to the
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Comm ssioners for review?

EXEC. DIR. McCLENDON: Yes, they
wer e.

CHAI RMOMAN BRADY: Thank you.

Have all Comm ssioners had an
opportunity to review the public comments
that were received by 9:00 a.m this
nor ni ng?

COW SSI ONER URBANI A:  Yes.

COWM SSI ONER DRI SCOLL:  Yes.

COW SSI ONER McGRAW  Yes.

CHAI RWOVAN BRADY: We have.

Thank you.

Pl ease mark the email ed public
coments as Gas Comm ssion Exhibit #3.

(Wher eupon Gas Comm ssion Exhi bit #3
was marked for identification.)

CHAI RWOMAN BRADY: Are there any
comments or questions from any of the
Conmm ssioners at this point?

(No response.)
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CHAI RWOMAN BRADY: Thank you all for
your participation.

COW SSI ONER McGRAW | ' m sorry.

CHAI RWOVAN BRADY: Yes? You have a
comment ?

COW SSI ONER McGRAW  Yeah. So | had
a couple of questions and conments.

So | think, you know, | want to
acknowl edge and, you know, start with an
appreci ation around the last two wi nters
and the work that PGW staff have done to
ensure that these, you know, heating
systens around Phil adel phia were able to
not experience gas service interruptions
t hat we've seen in the surrounding
counties. This is because of the LNG
reserve.

So | definitely appreciate having
this froma resilience standpoint,
specifically this past winter having that
col d snap.

But | think, you know, overall there

are questions around the cal cul ati on of
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t he savi ngs. |'d be curious, you know, an
of ficial breakdown of what went into the
90 mllion figure; you know, are we

| ooki ng at bifurcation, as nentioned,
storage, vaporization, and all of that

t hat goes into that, and specifically
around this January event.

And then curious around, you know,
what that would look |ike to, |ike, again,
the trucking in of things.

| think that in that, too, right, are
t he em ssions cal cul ations that have gone
into that, right, |like, what would it | ook
i ke to have trucks drive in, and things
of that nature.

So these are the kind of things that
| would be curious to see going forward
for that.

| don't know if you want to junp in
now or. . .

MR. DASENT: Well, we certainly can
provi de an answer for your question, and
based upon the transcript, I'll share that

with M. Cassidy.
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COMM SSI ONER McGRAW  Great. Thank
you.

And, then, | think, you know, we've
heard a | ot about sustainability and
climate alignnent.

| just wanted to address, you know,
in this, as we're noving forward, you
know, what are the considerations around,
you know, PGW I ooking to align with the
City's climate commtnments? How is that
going into things, like the liquefier?

You had nmentioned engi neering
studies. |Is that including Iike a
life-cycle analysis froma carbon
perspective, right, |like, what goes into
this, because | want to make sure that
that's addressed.

| think that's an inportant piece of
the puzzle, as we're figuring this out, to
ensure that we are nmaking the nost, you
know, strategic investnents.

| know that PGW has engaged with
Envi ronnment al Resources Managenent, as has

been nmentioned. | think that, you know,
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t hat | ow-carbon pat hway study, | don't
know the timng of that particularly, but
| would be curious if that is going to be
able to or at | east have portions of that
to be able to inpact the study here, and
what all of that, you know, entails.

Or are we just | ooking at the
management of the systemat current? Are
we | ooking at |like a new building on the
di versification study?

And that's nmy question on that one.

MR. DASENT: And we can supply an
answer to that as well.

COWM SSI ONER McGRAW  Ckay.

MR. DASENT: And we're just trying to
figure out how this all sort of fits into
conditions that you m ght ask us after we
answer the question --

MR. McGRAW  Mm humm

MR. DASENT: -- for us to follow
t hrough on in order to get approval.

MR. McGRAW And then | think for the
negoti ations in here, you know, as

menti oned, the ability to have the
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| ow- car bon pat hway, you know, potential in
t here.

But | think that if we're talking
about the ability to cone forward with
hosts, P3, right, like, that P3 assessnent
shoul d be done additionally with that.

So, like, I think, like, if it's
capital only, what does that |ook I|ike?
But, then, if the P3, you know, |ike, as
t hat contract negotiation, | know that
will take some time, but | think that
havi ng that consideration in there is
really key as well, | think.

And then, on the geot hermal

feasibility, | know that that feasibility

study was done, if |I'mnot m staken, with

operating -- and it's because we were not

directly -- | just want to get that on the
record, but, like, that that is not a

capital obligation, right, that was an

operati ng expense that we were | ooking at

the potential to what it could |ook I|ike.
But | think I'"mjust surprised to not

see sonme kind of capital, like, line item
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t hat woul d address a potential pilot for
t hat going forward.

So, |like, you know, | would hope that
there would be sonmething |ike that going
forward to address whether it's the
| ow- carbon pathway |ine or sonmething |ike
t hat .

| don't know if, like, it's within
t he Capital Budget or if there is, |ike,
an ability to pull that out.

| think that would be sonething that
' m hearing that we want to see going
forward.

MR. DASENT: Fi ne.

And it is funded and we are comm tted
to doing it.

But we can al so give you an
acknow edgnment of that fact so that
there's absolutely full transparency on
t hat issue.

COWM SSI ONER McGRAW  So you're
saying there is funding allocated to do
the pilot --

MR. DASENT: Yes.
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MR. McGRAW -- or the
post-feasibility; right?

MR. DASENT: The post-feasibility’
wi |l be the next step.

COW SSI ONER McGRAW | see.

But nmy understanding is that the
feasibility study is wapping up now. So,
then, there is no capital assignnment at
this point to the potential of a pil ot
because we're asking for the |iquefier
before we have all of the details, but,
like --

MR. DASENT: Yeah.

COW SSI ONER McGRAW  -- | know we're
ki nd of just curious about the geot hernmal
pi ece in that.

MR. DASENT: And we certainly can
answer that question for you.

But | think M. Tenme will address the
point in terms of where we are with the

proj ect; and based upon that assessnent,

that will tell you our next step, which
will be to ask you for whatever funding is
needed.
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COVM SSI ONER McGRAW Al |l right.

And then, | would just ask that when
the study is conpleted, that we cone back
to a public nmeeting and present the
findings of the study.

MR. DASENT: Fair.

CHAI RWOVAN BRADY: When will that
study be done?

MR. DASENT: M. Tenme is supposed to
be there for the next neeting --

CHAI RMOMAN BRADY:  Ckay.

MR. DASENT: -- to report --
CHAI RWOMAN BRADY: Yes.
MR. DASENT: -- for us, and we were

going to do that at the next Phil adel phia
Gas Comm ssion neeting.
CHAI RMOMAN BRADY: Perfect.
MR. DASENT: Thank you.
CHAI RWOMAN BRADY: Are there any
ot her comments or questions from any of
t he Conm ssioners at this point?

(No response.)
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CHAI RWMOMAN BRADY: Thank you all for
your participation as we deliberate.

All identified exhibits will be
entered into the record of this neeting.
This matter is now before this

Comm ssion for action.

|s there a notion on the Phil adel phia
Gas Comm ssion's Recommended Deci sion for
the Fiscal Year '27 Capital Budget,
associ ated forecast, and other matters?

COWM SSI ONER DRI SCOLL: Madam Chai r
| have a notion, and | would like to
comment before | make nmy notion.

Whil e we appreciate the work put
forth by the Gas Conmm ssion staff, Public
Advocate, and others involved w th making
t his Recommended Deci sion, we currently
| ack a clear recomendation that would
allow us to make an i nformed deci sion at
this tine.

Primarily, our concern involves the
recommendati on involving the replacenent
of the LNG liquefier Richnmond plant.

First, the recomendati on states that
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the Richnond liquefier is in the latter
portion of its service |life and that
continued reliance upon it presents
reliability risks.

However, the Gas Conm ssion Staff
recomendation is asking for us to deny
PGW s request for $182 mllion for the
i quefier replacement, even though its
time in service is soon comng to an end.

Furthernmore, the Staff recommendation
states that the replacenment of the LNG
l'iquefier is prudent for safe and reliable
service and, if PGW needs noney in the
future, it can request an anmendment to the
Capi tal Budget.

We have contradictory statenments with
what we're being asked to review and
approve regarding the replacenment of the
LNG | i quefier.

A decision of this magnitude requires
cl ear guidance for the Conmm ssion to make
an informed decision. This decision wll
affect all Philadel phia gas utility

rat epayers. We need all the facts before
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moving forward. This is a conplex issue
deserving nore study.

As such, | mke a motion that we
table this matter to allow sufficient tine
to obtain the necessary information and
cl ear guidance for our decision.

CHAl RWOMAN BRADY: The Vice Chair has
made a notion to table the decision on the
Gas Comm ssion's recommendation for the
Fi scal Year 2027 Capital Budget.

|s there a second?

COW SSI ONER McGRAW  Second.

CHAI RWOVAN BRADY: It has been noved
and properly seconded.

|s there any discussion?

(No response.)

CHAI RWOMVAN BRADY: All in favor of
the notion?

COWM SSI ONER URBANI A:  Aye.

COW SSI ONER McGRAW  Aye.

CHAI RWOMAN BRADY: No opposition.

The motion has been approved and we
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will table this matter to allow sufficient
time to obtain the necessary informtion
and cl ear guidance for our decision.

(Wher eupon the nmotion was unani nously
carried.)

CHAI RWOVAN BRADY: The third item --

MR. DASENT: Madam Chair --

CHAI RWOVAN BRADY:  Yes.

MR. DASENT: ~-- if | mght, nost of
t he budget is not controversial. In other
words, the 182 mllion, | understand, the
LNG proj ect .

CHAI RWMOMAN BRADY: MM hunm

MR. DASENT: But when you subtract
t hat from the bal ance of the budget, where
we have stipul ations and agreenents and
normal vanilla expenditures that we make
that need to be recommended first and then
approved by City Council in a tinmly way
before they go out of session at the end
of the fiscal year, it would be prudent to

have a decision on that portion of the
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budget, other than the LNG project, today
or in the near future.

CHAI RWOVAN BRADY: We will consider
that, but it will not happen today. If we
have a special session, we could consider
t hat, but we do have tinme before Council
needs to pass the budget.

MR. DASENT: Thank you.

CHAI RWOMAN BRADY: Thank you,

M . Dasent.

Reported by: Mary Hammond, CSR
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